
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
5500 SCHOFIELD AVENUE 

WESTON, WI 54476 
 

MONDAY, JUNE 19, 2006 - 5:00 P.M. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

Vilas Machmueller called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  Members present were Mary 
Hancock, George Oberlander, and DPW Keith Donner.  Steve Meinel, Mark Strobel, and Ted 
Banholzer were excused.  Trustees Fred Schuster and Dave Diesen were present.  Village 
Administrator, Dean Zuleger, Community Development Director, Jennifer Higgins, Building 
Inspector Al Breu, and Recording Secretary, Valerie Parker were present.  About 15 audience 
members were also present. 
 

II.  NEW BUSINESS
A. NONE 

 
III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. TABLED SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR MOUNT OLIVE LUTHERAN CHURCH/MIRON 

CONSTRUCTION CO. – MOUNT OLIVE LUTHERAN CHURCH BUILDING ADDITION:  6205 
ALDERSON STREET 
Mike Murphy, Miron Construction, N816 Third Street, Wausau, Tom Russell, Point of 
Beginning, 1101 Brilowski Road, Suite D, Stevens Point, and Pastor Raymond Connor, Mount 
Olive Lutheran Church, 6205 Alderson Street, were present. 
 
Higgins stated that there have been revisions to the site plan, which Murphy & Russell handed 
out to the members.  Higgins stated some of the changes include the plans for curbing.  The 
curbing on the driveway has been removed from the plan.  She brought to their attention the 
letter (attached) from Mark Berg, dated June 15, 2006, labeled “Church Driveway Access 
Road onto Park Ridge Drive”. 
 
Zuleger explained Berg’s letter to the members.  Zuleger stated that Berg wants the driveway 
access limited to 22 feet, which the church has accommodated.  Zuleger stated that Berg’s 
interpretation of the zoning code is that he does not think the 12-foot setback for a residential 
driveway should be applied here.  Berg thinks it should be larger because it is not a residential 
driveway, so much as it is a thoroughfare.  Zuleger stated that staff does not agree with Berg’s 
interpretation.  He stated that Berg would accept a conditional use for their driveway access 
onto Park Ridge Drive across this residential lot, only if there is a 30’ setback from Berg’s 
home.  Zuleger feels this is excessive.  Zuleger stated that Berg’s landscaping request has 
been accomplished.  Higgins explained that staff requested the curb on the driveway be 
removed because when our street crew is snowplowing, the curb will get clipped off.  Zuleger 
continued to read that Berg is requesting evergreen shrubs at a minimum height of 4 feet.  
Berg is also requesting screening to be provided along back line of his property to screen the 
driveway that will run behind his back lot line, which Zuleger stated the current site plan 
accommodates. 
 
Russell explained the changes made after talking with Village staff.  He explained that they slid 
over the entire main parking facility and drive entrance as a way to accommodate the 
separation.  He pointed out that their drawing now shows a 20-foot dimension on the entrance 
adjacent to Berg’s property, which is actually to their radius point for the connection to Park 
Ridge Drive, not to the property line.  Russell stated that they pushed the entire parking facility 
and central drive entrance coming out onto Park Ridge Drive two feet to the east to 
accommodate and get the required buffer off of the property line, from the neighboring 
property to the west.  He clarified that there is actually a full 22 feet to Berg’s property line.  He 





PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2006  PAGE 2 
 

pointed out that this driveway is not actually parallel to Berg’s property line, that the northern 
part of this driveway is about 24 feet from Berg’s property line.  He stated that they added 
curbing along south side of their lot as a separation, per staff’s request.  He stated that they 
have maintained the curbing on north end to help direct storm water.  He stated that for the 
most part, the main parking area is designed for sheet draining, where they are trying to sheet 
flow the storm water out to the east to the large detention facility, closer to the edge of the 
woods.  They want to use the landscaped islands, which will not be curbed, to help with 
collection, infiltration, and sediment clean-off of storm water.  Since the last meeting, the 
parking lot count has been figured.  He stated there currently are 37 regular parking stalls and 
2 handi-cap parking stalls.  They are planning to add 192 regular parking stalls plus 8 more 
handi-cap parking stalls, which will now give a total of 229 regular parking stalls and 10 handi-
cap parking stalls. 
 
Zuleger then asked Russell exactly how many feet from Berg’s house to the beginning of the 
pavement of that driveway.  Russell stated that they would have to verify the distance between 
the property line and the setback.  Russell stated that they did not actually do a topographic 
map to Berg’s property, but from the edge of the pavement to the property line is a minimum of 
22 feet on the church’s property. 
 
Ted Zeidler, 2607 Shepherd Lane, questioned the existing stakes.  Russell stated the reason 
for their location is they are offset (a set dimension off the actual pavement edge, so they 
aren’t taken out by equipment) for the radius only, that the driveway does not go out that far.  It 
was clarified that there will be no parking on either side of the driveway. 
 
Russell explained to Oberlander that the driveways will allow 2-way traffic and that there will 
be no curbing on either driveway (per Village staff request).  They are trying to get as much 
water to run off onto the grass area as possible, which is the reason for the parking lot not 
being curbed.  Zuleger pointed out to Oberlander that we made exceptions to other properties 
to not curb and gutter their lot for drainage purposes.  There will be landscaped islands on the 
northeast area of the parking lot. 
 
Donner questioned the driveway setback, which shows 20 feet.  He said that they need to 
clarify on their plans if that is off the property line, and that their plans need to show the 22-foot 
setback at that point with the radius of 20 feet.  Donner clarified to Russell that they are not 
showing the setback dimension of the driveway to the property line.   Donner stated that they 
should show the minimum 22 feet and whatever the setback is on the backside.  Donner 
stated that he spoke with Jim Howley, who did the stormwater plan.  Donner stated that Tim 
Vergara, Stormwater Manager/Project Engineer, notified Donner that the stormwater design 
storm events needed to be more intense than what their calculations show.  Russell stated 
that they have the TR55 runs for them and that the total detention volume went from 8,800 
cubic feet, required to the main detention pond, and it is now going to be at 10,825 cubic feet.  
Their detention pond has a volume for 13,000+ cubic feet.  They do have ample room for 
storage.  Donner stated that Howley’s comment was that this pond was actually oversized and 
asked if they want to utilize this for future expansion.  Russell stated that they designed this for 
an additional double row of parking in the future, if they did look at expansion.  Donner 
questioned if this detention area is also intended for some future development along the south 
side of this site.  Russell stated that yes it would, but they would have to look at it more in the 
future.  Donner then questioned the roof drains on the existing building and roof drains with the 
addition that are being directed to the stream to the north.  Donner stated that staff feels this 
should be directed into the basin on north side, instead of directly into the stream.  Donner 
commented that the parking lot layout and number of stalls are now cleared up.  Donner 
questioned how they were going to keep cars from driving onto the landscaped islands if the 



PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2006  PAGE 3 
 

islands are not curbed?  Russell stated that they would be putting landscaping, shrubs, and 
grass in those areas to discourage people from driving across them.  Donner pointed out that if 
they do not put something in there that the landscaped islands will just become part of the 
parking lot. 
 
Higgins stated that we have not received the landscaping plans yet, those will come in later.  
Oberlander questioned the reason for their not curbing.  Russell reiterated that this is mostly 
for drainage purposes, but also that curbing can get very costly.  Oberlander questioned the 
lighting.  Higgins stated the lighting specs met the requirements of the code and like St. Peters 
Church, we requested they turn the lights off during their closed hours.  Connor stated that 
they currently have the lights on a timer where they shut off at 10:00 p.m.  A lady in the 
audience stated that the lights generally do not go off until after 11:00 p.m. each night.  Conner 
stated that they would re-adjust their timer. 
 
*M/S/P Donner/Hancock: to approve the Site Plan Review for Mount Olive Lutheran 
Church/Miron Construction Co. – Mount Olive Lutheran Church Building Addition:  6205 
Alderson Street, contingent to the dimensions of the setback to the western driveway 
on Park Ridge Drive being shown on plans, a 22-foot minimum from the property line, 
also that 22 foot space be used as a landscaped buffer between property, not owned by 
the church to the west, and that landscape screening be provided in that buffer and 
along the south boundary of church property adjacent to any properties not owned by 
the church (4-feet in height minimum), and that the stormwater calculations as they 
have been re-run by the applicant be submitted to Village. 
 
*M/S/P Oberlander/Hancock: to amend the motion to include the lighting be turned off at 
10:00 p.m., except if there is a late church service occurring.  All ayes. Q: Donner 
wanted to add to the motion the landscaping to be included in those green areas in the 
parking lot. 
 
*M/S/P Donner/Oberlander: to make a second amendment to the motion for the 
landscaping to be included in those green areas in the parking lot.  All ayes. 
 
Motion with the two amendments –  all ayes, motion carried. 
 

IV. FUTURE MEETING TOPICS
A. NONE 

 
V. ADJOURN

*M/S/P Oberlander/Hancock: to adjourn at 5:35 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Valerie R. Parker 
Recording Secretary 


	WESTON, WI 54476
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II.  NEW BUSINESS
	III. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	A. NONE

	V. ADJOURN




